














about two weeks after that my husband was again driving the bus down
the highway when several other picketers followed the bus and tried
to run the bus off the highway. This was on Highway 99. So I don't
see how you people here can listen to all their side and get on their
side of what the workers do to them and the violence that has been
done and not our side also, because it seems like I've been sitting
here and hearing all these things that they've been beaten, all the
violence that has been done to them. We have had some done to us,
too.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: I understand that, Madame, that's why we

are having you testify. Do you want to make a statement? Did you

have any other. . . ?

BARBARA SALINAS: No, I just thought that I'd come in. If I'd

have known, I'd have prepared something better, but I thought it was
about time that since they are whitewashing Chavez and his people,
people are thinking he's so holy and all his people, and while I

was sitting back here, they cursed at us and I didn't say anything
back at them, but they were using pretty vile language against some of
these ladies back here. It seemed to me like it should have been
stopped.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: I made some attempts to try and get it

stopped, madame.

BARBARA SALINAS: I don't think any of these women here have any-

thing to do with the farm workers, and I hope you do deal with this

problem once and for all.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: We hope to. Thank you very much. Mr, Bere-

man.

MR. ROBERT BEREMAN: Thank you very much. May I first apologize
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for being late. I know the Committee expected me earlier, but I was
tied up with four Superior Court Judges, and if you've ever been in
meetings called by -judges, yvou know you don't walk out at your plea-
sure.

I don't have a prepared statement. My name is Robert G. Bereman,
I'm the District Attorney of Tulare County. I would merely like to
state prior to being guestioned by the Committee i1f the Committee does
have questions, that it has been my policy in Tulare County, since I
have been District Attorney since 1966, in matters of the type we
are concerned with today that the District Attorney's office is

strictly impartial with respect to the filing of complaints as I know

members of the Committee are aware. The District Attorney's office
is not on the front line in these matters that are the subject of the

hearings these days. We usually are asked for legal advice or we are
asked to file complaints. Our position and our basic policy stated
very simply is that, regardless of whether the complaint is by a
rancher or a grower against a picket, or a complaint is by a picket
against a security guard or a rancher or a grower, 1if there is evi-
dence to support the charge, we file it and we prosecute it. I believe
the record in Tulare County will support that statement.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: May I ask you a guestion? We listened to some

test ny from the District Attorney in Kern County and I'd like to
ask you the same guestion that I posed him. Did you involve yourself
at any time in civil suits that were filed by growers or by other
parties? Did your office enter into any of the civil suits?

MR. BEREMAN: No, we have not been a party to any civil suits. We
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have indirectly been involved, of course, in arrests that were made
as a result of the violation of injunctions that were issued to
growers, and, of course, those would be civil as the Chairman knows.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: How many cases are still pending in your of-

fice at the present time?

MR, BEREMAN: As far as this year's difficulties are concerned,
we have at the present time approximately 54 cases pending that were
filed against picketers or strikers. We have approximately 8 pending
that were filed by strikers, most of them I believe members of the
United Farm Workers against others.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Can you tell me about the citation system

for getting people out of jail?

MR, BEREMAN: The citation system is used fairly generally in

Tulare County except it was not used in these situations, and I'm
unable to answer. 1 imagine the Sheriff or his representatives could
undoubtly answer that question. But as far as its use is concerned,

I believe that the problem would be this ~- if the citation system
were used and we found it, of course, even in balil situation that the
person who was arrested, if he were immediately bailed or, I think this
would apply to a citation system, immediatley went back to where he

was arrested and engaged in the same or similar types of activities
that he was engaged in before, and we then found ourselves faced with
multiple arrest of the same persons within a very short period of time.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Any questions? Thank you very much, sir.

Your name?

MS. LIZA HERSCH: My name is Liza Hersch. I'm a student from

Portland, Oregon. I'm speaking to you as a member this summer of the
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legal department in Fresno County. And it was my duty to be bhasi-
cally in charge of the coordination of the legal department activi-
ties from gathering evidence, to fight the injunctions, to the care
of the prisoners who were in jaul, and all the work we had to do.
Which means I had a great deal of contact with Sheriff Willmirth,

with the District Attorney, as well as many of the other undersheriffs
and people in the Sheriff's department.

I'm speaking mostly to substantiate or to corroborate what Cesar
Chavez has said earlier today. It was through the Department where I
was working that we received the injunctions. Therefore, we knew who
was served and also who was eligible to accept service on behalf of
the union. That was the basis of our training that the Union was
served improperly on several occasions even though service was event-
ually corrected, it was not corrected in time.

We also caught the Bar Packing Company injunction which was given
through Judge Paddorh with improper descriptions--lack of descriptions
of property where Bar handles many growers packing and work. We
would arrive at property and have picket lines and have no idea that
we had an injunction there, and this was the cause of several arrests.
However, as a result of protesting this on August 9th, we received a
modification of that injunction which did state all the property and
all the property lineg that were involved.

One thing that was not mentioned by any of the people who test-

ified earlier was they thought there were illegals in Fresno County

o

eing used by the growers to break our strike. It would not be pro-
ductive here to give you the documentation of what we find out, we do

have documentation of the transportation into Fresno County as well as




where they lived -- some of them at least. .

ASSEMBLYMAN NIMMO: Pardon me, guestion. Is your testimony
that there were illegal aliens imported into Fresno County for the
purpose of strikebreaking?

MS. HERSCH: ©No, I would not be right to speak on the motive,

but they were breaking the strike and they were imported.

ASSEMBLYMAN NIMMO: Could you say categorically that there were

no illegals engaged in picketing activities?

MS. HERSCH: I couldn't say categorically -- no. I observed

guite a few of the arrests that went on. Mostly at the corner of
Jensen and McCall where many of the arrests took place.

Another thing that was not mentioned by any of the previous
witnesses is that the Highway Patrol as well as the Sheriff's Depart-
ment was often involved in mass arrest situations, ard in general their
role was to cordon off the streets on either side of where the picket
lines were, thereby blocking people who were bringing orders to dis-
perse and therefore causing their arrests, even though some of these
people did not intend to stay to get arrested and did try to leave.

Members of the legal department documented the gun brandishing
of one of the growers or the grower's superintendent as well as
documenting the arming of scabs at another ranch. There were members
of the United Farm Workers staff that were followed around by growers
who were part of the group that was often inside the fields, that the
groups went around in caravans and was seen given grape stakes for the
workers to use, presumably as weapons, and who were armed themselves.

At one instance, they followed for sometime when we left and

were driving back to the office. Another time I was run off the road



late at night when I was driving around. These particular incidents
we did not make formal complaints of, but we did notify the Sheriff,
In subsequent discussions with the Sheriff's Department, we were told
nothing had been done to find out who these people were or do anything

about it.

ASSEMBLVYMAN MADDY: In your complaint that you made, did you
attempt to identify the people?

MS, HERSCH: Yes, we identified them by way of license numbers.

That's all we had outside of some physcial descriptions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: What was the disposition of your complaints?

M ERBCH: As I said, we did not attempt to make written come

plaint of this. We did, however, because what was suggested by the
Justice Department officials who were coming in to speak with us, we
were told that it would be sufficient in these cases to orally notify
the Sheriff's Department, which we did, and not only received no re-
sults but were told several days later that they didn't even bother to
write them down.,

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Did you talk to one specific person or did vou

talk to many?
MS HERSCH: We did talk to many in this case. We did talk to a
Captain. I really don't remember his name and also at one point

to Sheriff McKinney. But we were told by a sergeant that the notice

wae not even bothered to be written dow
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ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Do vou know what his name is?

£

MS. HERSCH: No I don't. This was told to one of the legal aides—-
not me.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Do vou know whether or not vyvou or any members
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of the legal staff made any formal complaints with the District

Attorney's office?

MS. HERSCH: Well, not on behalf of ourselves, though we did go

with members of the picket lines to do so.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: In the District Attorney's office?

MS. HERSCH: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: And were you ever denied access to any of the.

MS, HERSCH: Not in the complaints we tried to make here. I'm

speaking from my experience. However, Mr. Haberfelt did encounter...

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: That's what I'd like to have you do. 1I°'d

like to have your experiences because that is what you can testify to.
When you went to the District Attorney's office to file formal com-
plaints on behalf of members of the Union, those complaints were filed.
Is that right?

MS., HERSCH: Yes. I only went once because there were other

members of the Department who also filed.

I dealt with Lieutenant Cunningham who is in charge of the
Industrial Parm a great deal. It was reported to me innumerous times
the difficulties our legal staff had in doing its job. Its job was
to talk to the prisoners—--to get into see them. We were supposed to
have somewhat free access to them. We were not visitors, we were
there to give legal advise and etc. Innumerable times we were refused
entrance in the Industrial Farm and given all kinds of run-arounds.

ASSEMBLYMAN MOBLEY: May I ask you a gquestion? Are you a lawyer?

MS. HERSCH: No, I'm not. 1I'm serving as a legal aide.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Were you ever denied access?

MS, HERSCH: Mr. Haberfelt was denied access once at the County

- 133 -



jail at night, and for the most part the time that the lawyers got,
was that they ended up getting night access, but they had to stand
around and wait around for hours—-they were sort of given the
run-around. It was not a normal treatment for lawyers to have that

happen, by any means.

ASSEMBLYMAN MOBLEY: If I can ask another guestion. Did vou per-

soma lly develop any kind of a writ for these people? Is that part of
your job to draw any legal papers on any complaint or anything of this

nature?

No, the only legal papers I perscnally was involved
in drawing up were declavations, affadavits, not writs. That was all
handled by the lawyers. My job was not to act as an attornev at all,
but rather to get the work to the people that could do it, namely the
attorneys.,

In innumerable instances w
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not allowed to do our job., We
were not allowed to get into the prison to let them know what was
going on in their cases, which is essential when they are in jail
and have no other means of communication: and many times we were not
allowed to do that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Vou were advised what the 3
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in terms of allowing admittance to non-lawyers to talk with them?

MS, HERSCH: We were told initially wi

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: That there were going to be exceptions made to

vour case?
MS. HERSCH: Yes, definitely.

S "

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: I think it should be made clear, Mr. Chairman,

that the exceptions were for legal aides -- non-lawyers -- to involve

wen the first arrest occurred...



themselves with people arrested -- those are exceptions. It is not the
normal rule that non-lawyers are admitted into the jails to talk

with prisoners.

MS, HERSCH: Likewise, it is not the normal rule that so many
people were arrested.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: True. I think that's part of what we're

looking at here, that this was an unusual situation, and there were

some exceptions made.

MS. HERSCH: However, they were made initially, and they were

made in a very formal way, I don’t know what his rank is, but Mr.
Popaloa was one with whom I dealt to give the names of the people who
would be allowed in the jails. So even though after this agreement
was made and on paper by a written stipulation between us and between
the attorney and him, they were still violated; and they were violated
inconsistently in such a way that it was clear it was harrassment and
not particularly that we were obstructing their job or anything like
that. We were simply not allowed to do what our job reguired.

As a formal corroboration, we were the ones who took declarations
and with positive IDs of individual sheriff's deputies of those who
were beaten in jail,the nine who were beaten on the 20th. As well, we
interviewed the three women who were shackled after they protested, on
behalf of all the women in jail, to get their one phone call at the
Industrial Farm, and since they were the only ones who raised any kind
of a stink, they were the only ones who were allowed to make phone

calls and that was under rather brutal conditions that our declarations

attest to.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: What was the date?

MS, HERSCH: T think it was after the arrest on the 25th., I

have to check that. I think it was of the arrest on that date, but

I'm not absolutely certain on that
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could check on that in a

moment.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: If you would because Mr., Rodriguez and I were

in the Industrial Farm on the 23rd and spoke to the women as well as

i

+the men.

MS, HERSCH

2]

Did you speak to these three women?

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: No, we spoke to the whole group. They all

had access to us in terms of complaints in regard to the use of the
telephone and some of the things that you mentioned.

MS, HERSCH: I will check on that and get it to you. The jail

conditions that Mr. Chavez described this morning, he was certainly not
the only one to observe them. Many times in the course of our visits —-

our procedure wag Lo visi

v

the prisoners -- some members of the legal

department were to speak to each person every night because things were

happening at such a rate that it

nl

equired visits of that frequency to
let people know what was going on.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: How many personnel were assigned to that job?

MS. HERSCH: I think at the time when the number was greatest,

there was close to 20.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: You had 20 personnel, and how much time did
you have with each prisoner?

MS, HERSCH: We never had an agreement with that kind of time
limit.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: If you wanted to speak to each one of the

prisoners individually?




MS, HERSCH: Well, not in a situation where we wanted to take
them out of the cells into a room the way the lawyers have an inter-
view. What they did to save time, was have us gcc to the cells so
that we could communicate with every prisoner without sitting and
having individual conversations.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Did you place a time limit on it? I'm
thinking now that they had at one time 400 prisoners...

MS, HERSCH: 450 prisoners.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: 450 at one time, if each one of you wanted to

speak individually to those 450 men every evening as to what impact
that would have on the jail procedure? How long a period of time would
you want to spend in each cell or in the Industrial Farm on each even-
ing?

MS. HERSCH: We did not speak for any specific lengths of time and

we always cooperated with the gheriffs when they wanted us to move
more quickly. We never did spend a whole lot of time. . .

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: On the average, how long did they allow you

to spend with them in general?

MS. HERSCH: I think in general it was usually about a half hour

or so in each cell block, which is about 30 people.

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Tell us about how long you totally spent in

the jails or the Industrial Farm each night?

MS, HERSCH: It varied. I couldn't give you an average. I think

maybe people would spend maybe three hours in one night in jail because
we sent different groups of people to the Industrial Farms and Juvenile

Hall.
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ASSEMRLYMAN MADDY: VYou feel that was not in any way inter-

fering with the normal procedure of the jail operations to ask to
spend three hours every evening with the prisoners which was an un-

usual procedure to begin with, an exception, was it not?

Ms ERSCH: That wasn't any guestion that we concerned ocurselves
with,

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: You did not concern yourselves with that?

MS, HERSCH: We did not. We complied with the Sheriff's Department's
wishes after the agreement was made that we could make the visits,
We complied with tbei? wisghes regarding our movement and our speed,
So that's all the concern that we deemed was necessgary. As well we
saw the change in attitude or policies of the Sheriff's Department
towards us when the Justice Department stepped in and asked for con-
ditions to be changed or just asked to see what was geoing on. And as

wall, when the religicus people came from all over the country to join
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our picket lines and some were subseguently arrested, it was also
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profound to see how different the attitude of the Sheriff's Department

was toward the prisoners and toward the legal staff.

HAIRMAN TORRE: We've listened to testimony today from the
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Sheriff and it was hi that in fact there was no change
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in the manner in whict vere treated after the clergy had
come in. What changes did you see during this period of time?

MS., BERSCH: First of all, it was not just the clergy but when the

Juztice Deparitment
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tepped in. For one thing, the afternoon the Justice
Department first visited, immediately blankets appeared, immediately
the same day, the cells in the county jails that had been kept close

to 90 degrees for about two day, all of a sudden there was a cooling

system that could be used.
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CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Was advance notice given to the jailer or

the Sheriff that the investigators for the Justice Department were
going to appear and take a tour of the jail?

MS. HERSCH: I don't know. I don't know how they went about it.

Certainly I know they weren't allowed in until they had clued whoever
was in charge of the jail at the time. But we were not really in-
volved in their operation.

ASSEMBLYMAN MOBLEY: Mr. Chairman, can I ask what were the spec-

ific dates that you recall that these changes occurred?

MS., HERSCH: I don't remember the specific date. As soon as the

450 people were in jail--all of them-- as of that day then those

that ended up in jail for nearly two weeks had just gotten in, it

was two days after that the conditions changed. I'm sorry I don't

have the date right here. I'm not really sure but I will get it.
Actually, I don't really have anything further to testify on

except I did want to put on the record the addition the role that the

Highway Patrol played in blocking people from being arrested. We

certainly do not know what dealings went on between the two police

bodies, but it ended up in people being blocked, but the Highway

Patrol played a role that has not been mentioned before. And its

role is illegal and its power has not been mentioned. 1In every other

area where we have had a strike, it has not been raised here. Also

I would want the Committee to know that I don't think the Committee

ought to just take my word, but I'm testifying so that you will

know that the evidence that we gathered is on hand and the Committee

can contact the legal department at Kenne to obtain it.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Mr. Chairman. I would be very interested

in the dates you mentioned that major changes were made because
again, my major purpose and I'm sure that of the other members of
the legislative bodies in this County who visited the jail t@gethef
with the statements I've introduced in record for Senator Moscone
when he visited here, all dispute what you said unless the dates
are different. In other words, you are talking about when the

g

jail. I was there before that.

Led e

450 people were in

MS., HERSCH: Moscone visited when they were all in jail?

ASSEMBLYMAN MADDY: Yes. In fact, I was there the day they were

admitted to jail along with Mr. Rodriguez so I would be very interested
to know when you claim that those major changes were made.

CHAIRMAN ALATORRE: Can you get the dates for Assemblyman Maddy

and can vou let the consultant know so we can also put that in the
record -~ the dates you were talking about when you saw the changes
in the jail conditions in the Fresno County jail.

MS. HERSCH: I will get those for you. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN ALATQRRE: Thank you. This concludes the hearings this
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st thank each and every one of you for the cooper-

fn

ation that you have given the members of this Committee. For those of
you that testified, I thank you for takiagythe time, and also thosgse of
you who did not testify but showed an interest in this area. 1It's a
most difficult area and we recognize that there were a lot of emotions
displayed. There were a lot of allegations and a lot of charges that
have been made over the last two days. Let me just assure you of one
thing, that upon the adjournment of this Committee, I will be contacting

the Speaker for the purposes of setting up a hearing so that we can
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devote some time to look at the whole guestion of the private patrols for
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the purposes of trying to enact legislation if in fact we deem it
necessary. It's just that over the two-day period we have listened
to testimony and I think it is somewhat of a consensus on the part

of the people that we have had testifying, mainly law enforcement, that
some minimum regulations have to be enacted for the control and the
public safety of those people involved. And I will also be asking the
Attorney General to rule on the legality of the District Attorney's
involvement in civil disputes, namely, civil contempt orders. Do

any of the other members have any concluding statements? I thank

you very much again on behalf of the Committee and I assure you that
we will take the testimony that has been given over the two-day per-
iod very seriously and hopefully we can enact legislation so that the
things that took place during this current farm labor dispute do not
happen again and rectify the situation.

Thank you very much.
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